FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON als 6/13/2024 BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK MM

COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION 1 OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

Case #: 1031696

Case No. 855166

THE ESTATE OF RUTH HOTH C/O PERSONAL

REPRESENTATIVE, DONALD HOTH, Appellant

VS.

EDWARD HOTH, Respondent

PETITION FOR REVIEW BY SUPREME COURT

Donald Hoth, Appellant (pro se) 2311 Woburn St. #4 Bellingham WA 98229 Phone: (360) 922-2759 Email: dfhbaby@yahoo.com

CONTENTS

A. Introduction

A quarter of a century has passed since the Washington courts adopted the Trust Estate Dispute Resolution Act (TEDRA) for the purpose of resolution of probate matters through nonjudicial dispute resolution methods, such as mediation, arbitration, and agreement. The spirit of TEDRA affirms family values, and seeks to keep such disputes out of the courts and off public record. Yet, in all this time, no party has ever been successful in invoking even the first level of TEDRA dispute resolution mediation. This petition intends to illustrate the need for courts to set standards which are reasonable, sufficient and, at the very least, succeed in TEDRA's intention of resolving disputes out of court. As this applies to my current petition, we shall look specifically at the (1) procedural notice requirements under TEDRA RCW 11.96A.300; and (2) the standard of "good cause" in which a respondent can simply waive away a TEDRA petition calling it "vexatious" and/or discrediting the petitioner. Lastly (3) we shall discuss whether a petitioner who simply

requests mediation (i.e. no claim for money) deserves such punitive sanctions as attorney fees in the tens of thousands.

B. Identity of Petitioner

Petitioner / appellant, Donald Hoth, as personal representative of the estate of Ruth Hoth (the parties' late mother) seeks review. Note that I, the selfsame Donald, am representing myself. My experience is that estate litigation attorneys are few and far between, and generally balk at filing a mere petition with no claim. They tend to look for estate dispute claims of at least a million. In this culture, I felt my only real option was to file pro se. Other TEDRA petitioners tend to be pro se.

C. Court of Appeals Decision

The appeals court division 1 filed its unpublished opinion on April 15, 2024, and denied reconsideration on May 14, 2024. See Ex A and Ex B 1-10. Trial court's order is Ex C 11-20.

D. Issues Presented for Review

Insomuch as TEDRA was intended to facilitate nonjudicial dispute resolution, do the current standards for granting a petition, serve TEDRA's purpose? (1) If mediation / arbitration is intended to circumvent litigation, is it truly helpful for the court to insist on notice procedures that are so specific that only an experienced estate litigator would know what was expected? (2) Can a respondent to a TEDRA petition claim to have "good cause" for denying mediation just because he doesn't want it? (3) When the appeals court has affirmed the trial court's decision, without citing any meritorious arguments proffered by the respondent's counsel, can it be said that the respondent has "substantially prevailed" as per RAP 14.2?

E. Statement of the Case

As petitioner / appellant in this case I petitioned the trial court to order mediation under TEDRA: RCW 11.96A.300. My petition was ultimately denied with little discussion as to why. Upon appeal, the trial court's ruling was affirmed citing procedural insufficiency and supposed "good cause". Counsel for the respondent has tried throughout this process to portray my petition as res judicata and "vexatious". He has gotten little traction in court with these arguments, but has succeeded in spite of himself due to the trial court's deference to cases of precedent, and by introducing into the record a 2020 email I sent Edward long before I had standing to file this case.

Also noted for review are general issues of standing and agency of the parties. Note that in 2020 the appeals court reviewed a similar appeal from me against our parent's Trust. Edward was the trustee, and hence, respondent in that case too. At that time, his counsel made much of the fact that, as that petition was filed against the Trust, he could not be held liable for his activities as power of attorney agent. Later, I petitioned him as an individual, and his counsel countered I lacked the requisite standing as personal representative. Now that I have standing as personal representative, Edward's counsel has called

my petition res judicata. It surely is not. Moreover, he has delved into the family history to discredit me with an email from 2020, long before I had standing to file this case, and irrelevant to our current dispute.

F. Arguments why Review should be Accepted

As per RAP 13.4, petitions for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

In this context, I shall argue that my petition be accepted for review under RAP 13.4 (4), as there are issues of public interest in letting the Supreme Court establish: (1) a reasonable

standard for what constitutes sufficient notice under TEDRA: (2), what constitutes "good cause" for denying a TEDRA petition; and lastly (3), whether the counsel for the respondent truly deserves credit for having "substantially prevailed" when the court denies a TEDRA petition.

1. The court has set the bar unduly high for "sufficient procedure" to invoke TEDRA.

In its unpublished opinion of April 15, 2024, the appeals court justifies the trial court denial of the petition for mediation thusly, "The notice must substantially comply with statutory notice procedures. See In re Estate of Harder, 185 Wn. App. 378, 383-84, 341 P.3d 342 (2015) (denying petition to compel mediation where statutory procedural requirements were not followed) ... Donald did not assign error to the court's findings that he did not comply with notice procedures under RCW 11.96A.300" (sic).

In underscoring this point about notice procedure, the appeals court suggests, but does not explicitly state, that a

petitioner such as I must highlight, copy and paste the statutory template into the pleadings in order for the petition to have effect. The court further suggests, but does not explicitly state, that by neglecting to assign error to the court for the above finding that I waived the argument. I disagree on both counts.

Firstly, whereas it may be understood within the culture of estate litigators that they must highlight, copy, and paste the statutory template into the pleading, it is not necessarily clear to a petitioner. I maintain that it is least tenable that a petitioner might satisfy this procedural requirement by merely citing the relevant statute (RCW 11.96A.300) and letting counsel for the respondent (and/or interested parties) look it up on any search engine. Perhaps if a respondent is not represented by counsel, it might be argued that the petitioner needs to highlight, copy, and paste it in order to be compliant, but that can be left to the discretion of the judge. In this current case, however, the appeals court assumes that the trial court judge denied my petition largely for reasons of insufficient notice procedure as in Estate of Harder. I maintain that the trial court is not necessarily beholden to this precedent. Judges have a measure of discretion, and in the interests of dispute resolution under TEDRA, courts might occasionally take a more flexible approach to notice procedure. I maintain that in this case, my notice procedure was sufficient.

Secondly, the appeals court suggests that I waived my argument by neglecting to assign error to the trial court for its finding. This was not, in my view, a shortcoming on my side. If a trial court judge deems that the statutory template must be highlighted, copied, and pasted into a pleading, I can accept that sometimes he may be right. It is not necessarily an error. While I feel that doing so was not essential in my case, in other instances, it might be appropriate. Moreover, the trail court has not explicitly asserted that neglecting to highlight, copy and paste was indeed the procedural issue that scuttled my petition.

Rather, it is the appeals court who has assumed that this must have been the reason. The trial court judge himself was studiously vague on the matter. Insomuch as it was never firmly established what procedural issue the trail court judge was concerned about, it cannot be said that I waived my chance to argue in response. Thus, I argue here that my notice procedure was sufficient, and that a more reasonable precedent is needed as TEDRA petitioners are likely filing pro se.

The April 15 unpublished opinion also substantially misrepresents the case history with this statement, "There is no evidence in the record indicating that Donald attempted to comply in form or substance with RCW 11.96A.300's notice requirements prior to the court's March 3, 2023 ruling." Note that the case was dismissed on May 10, not March 3, and there is ample evidence on the court record that I attempted to comply with notice requirements before the March 3 hearing, and before the May 10 dismissal. The TEDRA petition had been filed and served in late December 2022. CP 1-25. The

counsel for the respondent filed an objection, and March 3, 2023 we had our first hearing in which all interested parties were either present in the courtroom or represented by counsel. CP 28-33. CP 33-34. I cite form the court transcript:

THE COURT: (U)nder the TEDRA statute the Court should hold an initial hearing on the merits of the TEDRA petition. And the way I see it procedurally is that hearing hasn't been requested or noted. My question is if I deny the motion for mediation, should I order that initial hearing to be held at some point? You know, prior to that you could file any motions you want, Mr. Shepherd, I guess. RP 36.

It is anybody's guess how the parties could have been present for an initial hearing had it not been requested or noted. If the authors of the unpublished opinion are commenting that the Note for Motion Docket forms were absent from the designation of clerk's papers, they would be correct on that account. As court rules encourage litigants to designate only essential clerk's papers, I did not bother with designating Note for Motion Dockets. But they were cited in the merits brief accompanying my motion for reconsideration as Exhibits C and D. Whatever the judge may have been thinking, the noting of that initial hearing was procedurally sufficient.

In trying to make sense of the denial of my petition for mediation, I was left to speculate on the judge's motives. I cite from my motion for reconsideration at 21:

Perhaps the trial court judge simply has no confidence in mediation generally. Perhaps he prefers arbitration. After all, insomuch as mediation does not produce a clear winner and a loser, and as the outcome can be nebulous. this had occurred to me too. But under TEDRA, the court's discretion does not extend to allowing the judge to dismiss a request for mediation without good cause. TEDRA rules state that parties must first try mediation before requesting arbitration. Nevertheless, in deference to the judge, I filed a Notice of Arbitration as per the statutory template. I also provided an interrogatory and waited the statutory 20 days for a response. The other party's answer was merely another objection, and the court still did not compel compliance. Thus, the judge had by that point ignored my bid for mediation, arbitration and my interrogatories. This is all on the court record. Petition for Mediation: CP 1-25, Notice of Mediation: CP 109-111, Proposed Order to Mediation: CP 39, Notice of Arbitration: CP 103-105

In summary, I maintain that my procedure for noting an initial hearing was sufficient. My TEDRA petition, notice of mediation, notice of arbitration, and proposed orders were also sufficient and on court record before the initial hearing, and well before the case was dismissed.

2. The court lacks a reasonable standard of "good cause" to deny a TEDRA petition.

Other than the above procedural issue, the only real discussion of "good cause" for denying mediation was this March 1 written declaration by the respondent (Edward):

"I do not believe anything could be accomplished if this court ordered me to go to mediation. I do not understand what legal issues could be addressed at a mediation between Donald Hoth and myself ... Mediation in this matter would be fruitless. CP 47.

At our March 3, 2023 hearing the trial court ruled as follows:

THE COURT: I'm convinced by the declaration there that a referral to mediation would not bear any fruit, would be fruitless between the parties to this particular litigation. That's what I'm convinced of. RP 41 Note that neither Edward nor his counsel had proffered any serious argument to deny mediation, only a declaration that Edward didn't want it. The trial court judge was likely looking to case law for guidance as to how he should rule. Insomuch as the only cases of precedent regarding TEDRA are denials, the judge likely assumed he needed to do the same.

The larger body of case law seems to affirm the primacy of the court. I cite the appeals court (previous) unpublished opinion:

Hoth v. Hoth, No. 80284-4-I, slip op. at 1-3 (Wash. Ct. App. Nov. 9, 2020 (unpublished). The court in In re Estate of Fitzgerald noted that "TEDRA gives the trial court 'full and ample power and authority' to administer and settle all estate and trust matters . . . 'all to the end that the matters be expeditiously administered and settled by the court." 172 Wn. App. 437, 447-48, 294 P.3d 720 (2012) (quoting RCW 11.96A.020(1), (2)) (citing In re Irrevocable Trust of McKean. 144 Wn. App. 333, 343, 183 P.3d 317 (2008) (recognizing that TEDRA grants plenary powers to the trial court)). Noting this "broad grant of power" under TEDRA, the court in Fitzgerald applied an abuse of discretion standard to a trial court's denial of a continuance for discovery. 172 Wn. App. at 448. The Trustees Accounting Act states: "the court . . . after hearing all the evidence submitted shall determine the correctness of the account and the validity and propriety of all actions of the

trustee or trustees . . . and shall render its decree either approving or disapproving the account." RCW 11.106.070. This indicates that the decision to approve an accounting is a discretionary one and must be reviewed as such.

In reading such opinions a judge's is likely to see that mediators and/or arbitrators have little authority. Thus, whereas TEDRA ostensibly exists to facilitate dispute resolution, case law indicates that the courts do not cede enough authority to the mediators and arbitrators to succeed in doing so. TEDRA seems to offer petitioners the promise of dispute resolution, only to spit them out with a stain upon their name. In its 25-year history in this state, TEDRA has only ever discredited the petitioners.

The authors of the above 2020 unpublished opinion who reviewed my previous appeal further ridicule my request for mediation regarding certain discrepancies between Edward's management of assets under power of attorney (i.e. before our mother died) and his management of the Trust (i.e. the same assets after our mother died). I suppose that within the culture of litigation it is downright hilarious that anyone (me) could be

so stupid as to request mediation with a trustee in the same petition that he requests mediation with a POA agent - even if they are the same assets and the same person. Apparently, for litigators and judges it is obvious that those two forms of agency (power of attorney and trusteeship) are so different that they require two different petitions. Yet, ironically, after filing my current petition, that same community finds it downright hilarious that anyone (me) could be so stupid as to distinguish between the two forms of agency. While my current case is very deliberately filed against Edward as an individual, the current unpublished opinion begins its discussion of my appeal thusly: "This is the second appeal arising from ongoing litigation between Donald and Edward concerning the Living Trust of Carl L. and Ruth L. Hoth (Trust) and related matters." This statement is objectively false. This current case does not concern the Trust. It does, however, concern the very same assets as the first petition. I feel that if the court had not made the legalistic, hair-splitting distinction between the two forms of

agency, this dispute might have been resolved efficiently under the nonjudicial framework of TEDRA. But insomuch as those TEDRA methods cannot be invoked without a court order, Edward and I are stuck in litigation for years. I feel that the courts need to break this stalemate and set a precedent by ordering mediation under TEDRA.

3. The court grants (punitive) attorney fees even when they are not appropriate.

According to the (current) unpublished opinion, the appeals court has two reasons for denying my petition for mediation: (1) an objection on procedural grounds; and (2) a relatively vague claim that there was "good cause" (because the respondent didn't want mediation). Note that neither of the reasons were cited in the respondent's brief to the appeals court to justify the denial. The appeals court has simply deferred to the trial court, giving its own reasons and finding its own case law. Edward's counsel got very little traction in court arguing that the statute of limitations had lapsed, and arguing res judicata. The counsellor argued unsuccessfully to the court commissioner that this case was not appealable. He then filed an untimely cross appeal which he later withdrew. He then filed a motion for additional evidence upon appeal which the court ultimately denied. His chief success has been by submitting to the court an old email I wrote to my brother, and framing it as an "abuse of judicial process". The appeals court has since granted Edward attorney fees, after which his counsel filed an affidavit of \$21,648 just for the appeal. The total for his fees including trial court is likely well over 50k.

Under RAP 14.2 attorney fees may be awarded to a party that "substantially prevails" on review. I find it unreasonable that Edward's counsel can be credited as prevailing. And I do not think it serves the public interest to impose such punitive sanctions on a party who has merely sought dispute resolution under the TEDRA. The counsellor's assertion that I have done all this just to be "vexatious" is unsupported and frankly absurd. No one would do all this pro se litigation just for the pleasure of

annoying his family members. <u>NORTHWEST TELEVISION</u> <u>CLUB, INC v. GROSS SEATTLE, INC</u>, 96 Wash.2d 973 634 P.2d 837 (1981). (No costs will be awarded on review where there is no "substantially prevailing party".)

G. Conclusion

Insomuch as the court has recognized the Trust Estate Dispute Resolution Act (TEDRA) as affirming family values and facilitating dispute resolution, this petition for review raises issues of public interest. As my case indicates, the high-minded intentions in adopting TEDRA all come to nothing in light of the court's deference to cases of precedent which render dispute resolution nearly impossible. The history of TEDRA is but a few pro se petitioners failing to invoke the intention of TEDRA. The courts have set the bar for procedural compliance unduly high, and there is no real standard for "good cause" to deny a petition. Not only has the court failed to resolve disputes, but citing RAP 14.2, the courts have imposed punitive attorney fees