FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
7/12/2024 11:40 AM
BY ERIN L. LENNON
CLERK

# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

## **SUPREME COURT NO. 1031696**

(Court of Appeals, Division One No. 855166) (Whatcom County Court Case No. 22-4-01238-37)

**DONALD HOTH**, Appellant,

VS.

**EDWARD HOTH**, Respondent.

# RESPONDENT EDWARD HOTH'S ANSWER TO APPELLANT'S PETITION FOR REVIEW

Douglas R. Shepherd, WSBA #9514 Kyle S. Mitchell, WSBA #47344 Shepherd and Allen 2011 Young Street, Ste. 202 Bellingham, WA 98225 (360) 733-3773

July 12, 2024

# **

1111	

# **TABLE OF AUTHORITIES**

t Page
6
7
5
Page
3
Page
1, 8 7, 8
Page 5 5 1, 8

# **Appendices**

	<del>-</del> -	_
		<u>Page</u>
Appendix 1:	December 30, 2022,	
	TEDRA Complaint / Petition	
	To Order Mediation	A1-5
Appendix 2:	March 31, 2023, Declaration	
	Of Edward Hoth Re: Work as	;
	Power of Attorney	A6-63
Appendix 3:	April 28, 2023, Declaration	
	[of Donald Hoth] Re: TEDRA	
	Hearing	A65-70
Appendix 4:	_	A71-72

## I – IDENTITY OF RESPONDING PARTY

COMES NOW Edward Hoth (Edward) through his attorneys of record, Shepherd and Allen, and responds to the Petition of Donald Hoth (Donald). Donald and Edward are brothers.

# II – RELIEF REQUESTED

Donald's Petition for Review should be denied.

Attorney fees should be awarded to Edward and against

Donald, under RCW 11.96A.150 and as sanctions, under

RAP 18.9(a).

## III - RELEVANT FACTS

After their mother's death, Donald has repeatedly falsely and unsuccessfully accused Edward of legal misconduct, without providing any evidence of the alleged misconduct or claiming the misconduct caused Donald any

damages.<sup>1</sup> Donald's 2022 TEDRA Petition, dismissed on summary judgment, made the following claim against Edward, while acting as Power of Attorney for his mother, who died in 2016, six years earlier.

Ed has never been subject to any oversight or accountability because the only fiduciary agent was Ed himself, and up until now there has been no personal representative. The cause of this claim is that there are many unanswered questions which raise suspicions of Ed . . . . DAMAGES Not Applicable.

# See Appendix 1.

This appeal involves Donald's fourth lawsuit against Edward. In his Petition to this Court, Donald repeatedly argues the intended spirit of TEDRA prohibits court supervision of his rantings and TEDRA should allow his

Whatcom County Cause Numbers 19-4-00342-37;

<sup>22-2-00766-37; 22-4-01026-27;</sup> and, 22-4-01238-37; Division One Court of Appeals Cause No. 80284-4-I; and, Supreme Court Petition No. 993122.

rantings and frivolous accusations to continue in secret, outside the public record.<sup>2</sup>

Donald argues his Petition for Review should be granted because this Court should examine the TEDRA statute to see if it serves Donald's misguided beliefs about TEDRA.<sup>3</sup>

Edward's motion for summary judgment was supported by the following facts.

03. As stated before under oath, my brother Donald Hoth, has been angry for years about my being appointed by my parents to be the Trustee of their Trust(s).

04. Donald Hoth's allegations against me are misguided at best, and more likely resentful and only intended to harass, damage and injure me. They have no basis in fact or law. I never wrongfully took any money or benefits from the Trusts I managed.

<sup>&</sup>quot;The spirit of TEDRA affirms family values, and seeks to keep such disputes out of the courts and off public record." Petition for Review, at 4.

<sup>&</sup>quot;[D]o the current [statutory] standards for granting a petition, serve TEDRA's purposes?" Petition for Review, at 6.

- 05. As stated previously, mediation would benefit no one. Arbitration would not benefit anyone. There is no information I can provide to my brother Donald, which has not already been provided. There are no facts I can provide Donald which will satisfy him. I believe his only purpose is to harm me. I believe he knows there are no economic benefits to his ongoing litigations. I believe Donald meant it when he wrote to me that he hoped I would die. This is taking an emotional and economic toll on my wife and me. I believe Donald knows the harm he is causing. I believe Donald's purpose and sole intent for all his litigation is harm, not justice.
- 06. This matter should end at summary judgment and/or at the initial hearing ordered by this Court. . . .
- 08. . . . Again, Donald's "belief" in my alleged misconduct while acting as Power of Attorney for my mother is simply not true.

# See Appendix 2.

Donald's response to the summary judgment motion was an apparent discovery complaint: "My only real 'allegation' is that Ed has snubbed my information requests . . . and rejected my calls for mediation / arbitration." See Appendix 3.

1111

# Donald then argued:

I have previously written the court at length my reasons for wanting a deeper look at Ed's transactions. I have intentionally stopped short of alleging self-dealing or misappropriation of assets, as the scant accounting information I have seen would never prove anything.

See Appendix 3.

## IV - APPLICABLE LAW

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme

# Court only:

- (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

# RAP 13.4(b).

[T]he petitioner must persuade [the Supreme Court] that either the decision below conflicts with a decision of this court or another division of

the Court of Appeals; that it presents a significant question of constitutional interest; or that it presents an issue of substantial public interest that should be decided by this court.

In re Coats, 173 Wn.2d 123, 132-33, 267 P.3d 324 (2011).

Donald's TEDRA Petition failed to survive summary judgment in the trial court. The trial court properly determined Edward was entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law. Summary judgment is allowed when there is no genuine issue of material. CR 56(c). Donald did not appeal that decision. He instead appealed the trial court's Orders denying his request for mediation and to disqualify counsel for Edward. The Court of Appeals, Division One, correctly affirmed the trial court's rulings.

Edward's motion and declaration disclosed to the trial court that a mediation would be useless. *Olympic Fish Prods., Inc. v. Lloyd,* 93 Wn.2d 596, 602, 611 P.2d 737 (1980). The trial court and Court of Appeals, Division One correctly determined Donald was not entitled to mediation,

for good cause shown. Donald points to no evidence of err by the trial court or Court of Appeals in determining mediation would be fruitless.

Donald made no attempt to provide a factual record supporting his fourth TEDRA Petition. *Lamon v. McDonnell Douglas Corp.*, 91 Wn.2d 345, 352, 588 P.2d 1346 (1979). Donald apparently incorrectly believes this Court should provide him mediation as a discovery device. Petition for Review, at 16-17.

Donald provides no argument or law supporting his argument that the Court of Appeals or this Court can ignore RCW 11.96A.300(3).4

<sup>&</sup>quot;(3) Procedure when notice of mediation served after hearing set. If the written notice of mediation required in subsection (1)(b) of this section is timely filed and served by a party and another party objects to mediation, by petition or orally at the hearing, the court shall order that mediation proceed except for good cause shown. Such order shall not be subject to appeal or revision. If the court determines that the matter should not be subject to mediation, the court shall dispose of the

### **V – CONCLUSION**

This is Donald's fourth unsuccessful lawsuit against Edward. This is his second petition to this Court. In his TEDRA Petition, Donald admits he is not damaged by any actions of Edward as attorney-in-fact or trustee. He argues TEDRA should be changed by this Court to allow Donald to repeatedly complain about his dislike or distrust of his brother, Edward, in a private mediation. "Justice in all cases shall be administered openly, and without unnecessary delay." Wash. Const. Art. 1, § 10.

Donald's Petition should be denied and fees awarded pursuant to RCW 11.96A.150 and/or RAP 18.9 as this is a frivolous appeal.

matter by: (a) Deciding the matter at that hearing,

<sup>(</sup>b) requiring arbitration, or (c) directing other judicial proceedings." RCW 11.96A.300(3). (Emphasis added).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> "TEDRA seems to offer petitioners the promise of dispute resolution, only to spit them out with a stain upon their name." Petition for Review, at 17.

Pursuant to RAP 18.17(c), I certify that Respondents' Answer contains 1,275 words, in compliance with RAP 18.17, exclusive of the Caption, certificate of compliance, the certificate of service, and signature blocks as calculated by the word processing software used to prepare this motion.

Respectfully submitted this 12th day of July 2024.

SHEPHERD and ALLEN

Douglas R. Shepherd, WSBA #9514

Kyle S. Mitchell, WSBA #47344

1111

## **DECLARATION OF SERVICE**

I, Kyle S. Mitchell, declare that on July 12, 2024, I caused to be served a copy of the following document: **Edward Hoth's Answer to Appellant's Petition for Review;** and, this **Declaration of Service**, in the above matter, on the following persons, at the following addresses, in the manners described:

Donald Hoth	( ) U.S. Mail
2311 Woburn St. #4	( ) Fax
Bellingham, WA 98229	( ) Messenger Service
dfhbaby@yahoo.com	( ) Hand Delivery
	(X) E-File/Delivery

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of Washington that the foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this 12th day of July 2024.

Kyle S. Mitchell

Appendix 1

FILED COUNTY CLERK

2022 DEC 30 PH 1: 24

WHATCOM COUNTY
WASHINGTON

CHEPKERD AND ALLEN

# IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WHATCOM

THE ESTATE OF RUTH HOTH C/O

PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE, DONALD HOTH,

Petitioner,

VS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

EDWARD HOTH,

Respondent

Case No.:

22 4 01238

TEDRA COMPLAINT / PETITION TO ORDER

MEDIATION RE INFORMATION REQUESTS FROM

EDWARD HOTH'S POWER OF ATTORNEY PHASE

# **EVAN P. JONES**

NOW COMES petitioner, Donald Hoth, recently appointed by the Court as personal representative to the Estate of Ruth Hoth, with a complaint / petition against respondent Edward Hoth, who was Ruth Hoth's power of attorney agent from July 2, 2013 until her death on June 16, 2016. After that, Edward was also the trustee for the Living Trust of Carl and Ruth Hoth. This petition asks the Court to compel Edward into mediation to resolve various outstanding issues regarding information requests. Note that the litigants have already been before this Court earlier this year (See case no: 22-2-00766-37) and established that Donald would need to have standing as personal representative in order to hold Edward accountable for his actions as power of attorney agent, as in mediation.

Therefore, in a further previous petition, (See case no: 22-4-01026-37) Donald petitioned the Court to be appointed as personal representative. In a hearing in open court on November 18, 2022, the Court appointed Donald as personal representative (without nonintervention powers), pending notice of the TEDRA COMPLAINT / PETITION TO ORDER MEDIATION RE INFORMATION REQUESTS FROM EDWARD HOTH'S POWER OF ATTORNEY PHASE - I

other two siblings / trust beneficiaries, namely, Carl W. Hoth and Margaret L. Dare. In the interim, both siblings have now been notified and given 20 days to write back with any objections they may have concerning the appointment of a personal representative. (See Exhibit A; Package of Documents regarding Appointment of Personal Representative.) As expected, there have been no objections. Presumably the passage of these 20 days confirms the appointment.

Thus, in my newly-granted capacity as personal representative, I, Donald Hoth herewith petition this Court to order Edward Hoth into mediation to comply with information requests regarding transactions beginning with his appointment on July 2, 2013 and any transactions afterward using the agency of POA.

## 1. Authority of Jurisdiction

- 1. This matter is brought before the Whatcom County Superior Court, WA under its original jurisdiction as indicated in RCW 2.08.010.
- 2. As personal representative (without nonintervention powers), Donald has standing to bring this petition under TEDRA rules.
- 3. The statute of limitation has been discussed in previous petitions, particularly the October 14, 2022 hearing for the Motion to Reconsider Summary Judgment (case 22-2-00766-37), when the Court made it crystal clear that the only thing hindering efforts to hold Edward accountable was the question of Donald's standing. Statute of limitations was not a hindrance.

#### II. Venue

Whatcom County Superior Court, WA is the appropriate venue to hear this matter because:

- 1. The trust principals, Carl and Ruth Hoth maintained a home in Bellingham, WA as their primary residence. (They also had a secondary residence in Sun City, AZ.)
- 2. The Will, Trust and estate documents in question were created in Bellingham, WA and administered with legal counsel from local law firm Barron Smith Daugert.
- TEDRA COMPLAINT / PETITION TO ORDER MEDIATION RE INFORMATION REQUESTS FROM EDWARD HOTH'S POWER OF ATTORNEY PHASE 2

- 3. The Petitioner, Donald Hoth grew up in Bellingham and currently resides here.
- 4. The Respondent, Edward Hoth, was formerly a resident of Whatcom County. (He now resides in Los Alamos, NM.) He has already been before Whatcom Superior Court (represented by counsel) for breach of fiduciary duty as trustee. The Court resolved that Edward's liability as power of attorney agent was separate from his liability as trustee. Thus, Ed is now petitioned as an individual (not as a trustee), by Donald Hoth, newly appointed as the personal representative of Ruth Hoth's estate.

#### III. Background

- 1.) July 2, 2013 Unbeknownst to me, (Donald Hoth) at the time, Edward Hoth is named as eventual trustee in an unrecorded addendum to the "The Living Trust of Carl and Ruth Hoth". Trusteeship was to take effect upon the death of our mother, Ruth Hoth. On the same day, Ed is given power of attorney over all her assets, with immediate effect.
- 2.) June 16, 2016 Ruth Hoth dies giving Ed agency as trustee.
- 3.) November 14, 2016 Almost five months after her passing, Ed finally records Ruth Hoth's death certificate in Maricopa County Recorder's Office, Arizona, officially ending his use of power of attorney.
- 4.) December 14, 2017 All trust beneficiaries except Donald sign out of the trust, releasing Ed from further liability to them, with Donald as sole beneficiary of the remainder of a trust account consisting of just under \$17,000 in a money market account to offset potential legal fees.
- 5.) June 14, 2019 Donald files a pro se TEDRA petition in Whatcom County Superior Court charging trustee, Edward with breach of fiduciary duty for ignoring his information requests. The petition also asked for sourced, verifiable accounting records, which were not provided in full.
- 6.) July 5, 2019 Ed's attorney and Donald appear for the TEDRA hearing. The Court resolves that Ed's liability for breach of fiduciary duty as power of attorney agent is separate from his liability as trustee.
- TEDRA COMPLAINT / PETITION TO ORDER MEDIATION RE INFORMATION REQUESTS FROM EDWARD HOTH'S POWER OF ATTORNEY PHASE 3

	ı	l
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		,
22		
23		
24		
25		
26		
27		
- 1	1	

7.) June 24, 2022 - Donald files a pro se petition against Ed as an individual in Whatcom Superior Court charging breach of fiduciary duty for not providing requested accounting regarding transactions done using power of attorney. 8.) September 21, 2022 – Court rules that Donald, as a mere beneficiary, lacked standing to file this case. 9.) October 20, 2022 - Donald files a pro se petition requesting the Court to appoint him as personal representative of the Ruth Hoth estate. 10.) November 18, 2022 – At the hearing, Donald is provisionally appointed as personal representative (without nonintervention powers) pending notification of the other two siblings and a period of 20 days in which they have the opportunity to write back with any objection they may have to the appointment. IV. Claims and Causes of Action This claim / petition alleges that, as power of attorney agent, Ed has never been subject to any oversight or accountability because the only fiduciary agent was Ed himself, and up until now there has been no personal representative. The cause of this claim is that there are many unanswered questions which raise suspicions of Ed misappropriating assets, and committing other breaches of fiduciary duty. (For a more complete discussion of claims and causes please review case no: 22-2-00766-37.) V. Damages Not Applicable. VI. Request for Relief To order Edward into mediation at the Whatcom Dispute Resolution Center Dated this 30th of December, 2022.

Donald Hoth (Pro se)

TEDRA COMPLAINT / PETITION TO ORDER MEDIATION RE INFORMATION REQUESTS FROM EDWARD HOTH'S POWER OF ATTORNEY PHASE - 4

Appendix 2

COLLET

2023 MAR 31 PM 2: 00

WASHINGTON

1 2

3 4

5

6

7

8

9 10

11

12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21 22

23

24

25

Page 1 of 4

Case No: 22-4-01238-37

**DECLARATION OF EDWARD HOTH RE: WORK AS POWER OF** 

**ATTORNEY** 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR WHATCOM COUNTY

DECLARATION OF EDWARD HOTH RE WORK AS POWER OF ATTORNEY

ESTATE OF RUTH HOTH C/O

VS.

EDWARD HOTH,

DONALD HOTH, Personal Representative

Petitioner,

Respondent.

## SHEPHERD AND ALLEN

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 2011 YOUNG STREET, SUITE 202 BELLINGHAM, WASHINGTON 98225 TELEPHONE: (360) 733-3773 • FAX: (360) 647-9060 www.saalawoffice.com

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